V R SABNIS AND ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDIA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of OneWorld Logistics Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Oneworld Logistics Private Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit
and Loss , including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended ('The Act')in the manner so required and give s true and fair view In conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss including, other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAS), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements' section of our report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance with the
'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report
including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and shareholder’s information but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not r.
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
wiole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements. As part of an audit
in accordance with SAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Obtain an
understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. P




e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (1) of section 143 of the Act, we give

in the "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. p




(c)

(d)

(e)

{f

(g)

(h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules read
thereunder;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act;

With respect to matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with requirements of section- 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the Company has paid remuneration to its directors
during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16) of the Act which
are required to be commented upon by us.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in "Annexure B" to this report; Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Financial Statements.

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

{iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of qur audit we did not come across
any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.




{v)

(vi)

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {"Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Uttimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a)
and {b) contain any material misstatement.

There was no restructuring of any existing loan or cases of waiver/write off
of debts /loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the
company’s inability to repay the loans.

For V R Sabnis and Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 131055W

e

Vikram Sabnis
Proprietor

Membership Number: 135589
UDIN: 25135589BMIEKY8619

Date: May 23, 2025

Place: Mumbai



V R SABNIS AND ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDIA
ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ONEWORLD
LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India". These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
infarmation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
tinancial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of india. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internat
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that amaterial weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assgssment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error. We believe that to the extent of the audit evidence, we have obtained, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the poticies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all materiat respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants Of India. Company has its own internal mechanism to review
the internal controls of the company. To the extent of our verification, we found that internal
financial control for the year over financial reporting is adequate.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of aforesaid matter.

For V R Sabnis and Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 131055W

W/

Vikram Sabnis

Proprietor
Membership Number: 135589
UDIN: 25135589BMIEKY8619

Date: May 23, 2025
Place: Mumbai



V R SABNIS AND ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDIA

Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors Report:

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section
of our report of even date to the members of OneWorld Logistics Private Limited on the Financial
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025)

Report on Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) of
the Company

i. (a)
{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment
{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangibte
assels.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a program of physical
verification of its property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and
equipment assets are physically verified every two years. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
(Other than immovable properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreement is duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statement, if
any, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {(including right to use
assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company as at March 31 2025 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and
rules made thereunder.

(ii) {a) The company is service based hence no inventory/ physical stock is held in the company
and therefore, clause 3(ii}(a) of the Order is not applicable

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥5 crores in
aggregate from banks during the year, on the basis of security of fixed deposits and current
assets, The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company
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(iii) The Company has granted loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to Fresh Produce Value Creation Services Private Limited during the year

(A) The Company has provided advance in the nature of loan during the year. The
aggregate amount and the balance outstanding at the balance sheet date are
as follows:

Company Name Amount Given During Balance outstanding as
the year at the year End

Fresh Produce Value

Creations Services 142.43 Lakhs 234.87 Lakhs
Private Limited

(B) In the case of the above advances, the term and conditions under which such
advances were made are not prejudicial to the company’s interest,

(C} No fixed repayment schedule has been stipulated,
(D) There is no amount overdue for more than ninety days,

(E} No loan or advances in the nature of loans has fallen due during the year,
which has been renewed or extended or where a fresh loan was granted to settle
the existing obligation.

(F} The company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) The Companies has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security provided, as
applicable.

{v) Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits. Therefore, the reporting of clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities
carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause(vi) of the order is not
apptlicable to the company

{vii) (a) According to the records of the company, the companyis not regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income tax, GST, sales tax, wealth tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax or cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income —tax,
GST, sales tax, wealth tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax or cess and
other statutory dues were outstanding, as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.




Further, it has been observed that while professional tax has been collected from the
employees during the year, we have not received adequate challans to conclude that the
entire amount has been deposited with professional tax authorities as on March 31, 2025.

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, as at March 31, 2025, there are no dues of Goods and
Service Tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value
added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except

1.

below:

Details of disputed tax dues

Name of Statute

Nature of
Dues

Amount
(¥ Lakhs)

Period for which
the amount
pertains to

Forum at which
disputeis
pending

Central Goods and Service Tax
Act, 2017/ Madhya Pradesh
Goods and Service Tax, 2017

Goods and
Service Tax

8.50

FY 2020-21

Deputy
Commissioner
of State Tax

Central Goods and Service Tax
Act, 2017/ Gujarat Goods and
Service Tax, 2017

Goods and
Service Tax

70.46

FY 2020-21

Deputy
Commissioner
of State Tax

2.

The company has not filed it’s GST returns for Maharashtra for the month of
March 2025,

There have been instances where the ITC claimed in GSTR3B is in excess of the
ITC available in GSTR2B. The summary of the same has been attached below:

{Amounts in INR Lakhs)

States

As per GSTR2B

As per GSTR3IB

(Excess)/Short Claimed

IGST

CGST | SGST

Total

IGST

CGST | SGST

Total | IGST | CGST

SGST

Total

Maharashtra

43.16

46,73| 46.68

136.57

45.58

46.00] 46.00

141.58| (6.42)) 073

0.68| {5.0)

Punjab

0.00

0.06] 0.06

0.12

0.00

0.22] 022

0.44] 000 {0.16)

(0.16)] {0.33)|

Madhya Pradesh

0.04

002 0.02

0.07

0.08

0.00] 0.00

0.08 0.02

(0.05)

0.02

{0.01)|

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, as at March 31, 2025, there were no such transactions relating
to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (Section 43 of

1961).

(ix)

{a} The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings ot in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender. The Company has not been declared

willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans have been
applied for the purpose for which it is taken.




{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
examination of the books of accounts by us, funds raised on short term basis have
not been utilized for long term purposes.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Hence, the requirements
to report on clause {ix){e) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(e) The Company has not raised any leans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence reporting on
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x)
{a) The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3{x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally} and
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. The company has
issued 14,75,327 preference shares by conversion of loan to equity during the year.

(xi)

(a) According the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

(b) Noreportunder sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report

(c) As informed, the Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during
the year and up to the date of this report.

(xil) The company is not a Nidhi company, therefore the provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the
order is not applicable.

(xiii} In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act,2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) The requirement of internal audit is not applicable to the Company and hence provisions
of Clause 3{xiv) {a) to (b} of the Order are not applicable to the Company

{(xv) Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or person
connected with him and therefore the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act’
2013 are not applicable to the Company.




{xvi)

{(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi){a) & (b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in
the Core Investment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) & {d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii} According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has incurred
cash losses during the year under amounting to Rs. 543.06 Lakhs. Further, it has also
incurred cash loss in immediately preceding financial year amounting to Rs.469.93
Lakhs.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of auditors of the company during the year

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due.

{xx) The provision of Sec 135 of Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the company,
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and {b) is not applicable.

(xxi} There is no consolidation of financial statements, accordingly reporting under clause
3(xxi) is not applicable.

For V R Sabnis and Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 131055W

M"’

Vikram Sabnis

Proprietor
Membership Number: 135589
UDIN: 25135589BMIEKY8619

Date: May 23, 2025
Place: Mumbai



ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

AUDITED STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

{Amaurnias in INR Lakhs unless otherwise statad)

PARTICULARS NOTE NO. March 31,2025 March 31,2024
1. ASSETS
Non-Current Assots
{a} Property, Plant and Equipment 3 151.33 154.95
{b) Other Intangible Assets 4 4,85 6.18
{c) Intangible Assets under development 5 9.60 -
(d Delerred Tax Asset (net) 11(c) N2z 23.24
(e} Current Tax Assets (net) 159.97 170.84
637.12 355.22
Current Assets
{a) Financial Assets
{i) Trade Recelvables 8 1,453.60 1,165.03
{ii) Cash and Cash Eguivalents 7 32.94 28.82
[iii} Bank balance other than {ii) above ] 280,39 2683.97
{iv} Loans 9(a) 12.87 12.74
(v} Others 9{b} 164.69 128,17
{b)Other Currant Assets 10 560.79 450.52
2,505.28 2,039.24
Total Assets 3,142.40 2,194.46
11, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{o) Equity Shars Capital 12{a) 9895.00 995.00
(b) Instruments Equity in nature 12{b) 147.53 .
{c}) Other Equity 12(c) |BGB.BD} {1,991.53)
Total Equity 273.73 {996.53}
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilitics
(a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 13{o) 3.79 4.14
{b} Provisions 14(a) 57.63 38.37
61.42 42,51
Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13(b) 1,393.48 2,136.48
(i} Trade Payables 15
a. total sutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 20.81 21.98
b.total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 997.68 BO4.41
(i) Owher Financial Liabilities 16 52.36 B.18
{b} Other Current Liabititics 17 340.08 376.11
{c) Pravisions 14(b) 2.84 1.32
Totol Liabllties 2,807.25 3,348.48
Total Equity and Liobilities 3,142.40 2,394.46
Summary of Materisl Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our repoTt attachad
For ¥ R Sabnis and Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 0131055W

Vikram R Sahnis
Proprietor

Membership No. 135589
UDIN:25135589BMIEKYB619
Date: May 23, 2025

Place: Mumbal

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Makarand Pradhan  Shrikant Nibandhe
Director Director
DIN : 00102413 DIN: 01028115

el Bxecutive Offiger

Date: May 23, 202
Place: Mumboi




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

AUDITED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
{Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS NOTE NO. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1) Revenue from Operatlons 18 10,363.80 8,972.60
ll) Other Income 19 93.74 47.82
Il Totat Income {1+11) 10,457.54 9,020.42
V) Expenses
{a) Direct Operating Expenses 20 9,254.72 8,029.41
{b) Employee Benefits Expenses 21 685.20 525.56
(c) Finonce Cost 22 135.82 164.65
(d) Depreciation and amortization expense 23 52.88 48.37
{o) Other Expenszes 24 924,86 17073
V) Total Expenses 11,052.48 9,538.71
V1) Profit/{Loss) beforetax {Il-V) {595.94) {518.29)
VIl) Tax expenses from continuing operations
{1) Current Tax - -
(2) Deterred Tax 11{a) {287.34) {8.03}
VIill} Profit/(Loss} for the perlod from continuing operations (VI-Vil} {308.60) {510.27)
1X) Profit/(Loss) for the perlod {308.80}) {510.27)

X) Other Comprehensive Income
A ltema that wilt not be reclassified to profit or loss (0 subsequent yegrs

Re-measurement gains {losses) on defined benetit plans {2.64) [11.4%)
Incorma Tax Ellect 0.69 2.87

{1.95) {8.54)
Net other comprehensive income to not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent parlods (1.95) (8.54)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (1.95) (8.54}
XI) Total Comprehensive Income fos the perlod {I1X+X) {310.55) (518.81)

X} Earning per Equity Share

{1) Basic { ¥ per share) 25 {3.10) (11.03)
{2) Diluted { ¥ per share) 25 {3.10) {11.03)

Summary of Material Accounting Policles

The accompanying notes are on integral part of the Financlal Statements
1n tesrms of our report attachod

For V R Sabnis and Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Na. 0131055W

For and on behalt of tfie Board of Directors of
Qneworld Logisties Private Limited

oo (D

Vikram R Sabnis Makarand Prodhan  Shrikant Nibandhe

Proprigtor fighr Director Directer
Mambership No, 135589 DIN: 00102413 DIN:01029115
UDIN:251355898MIEKYB619

Date: Moy 23, 2025 Date: May 23, 2025

Place: Mumbal Place: Mumbai




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
AUDITED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

{Amounts in INR Lakhs unlass otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A.Cash flow from oparating activities:,
Profit before tax (595.94) {518.29}
Adjustments:
Depreciation & amorntization 52.88 48.37
Interast Expense 135.82 164.65
Interest Income {52.57) (30.086)
Working capital changes :
Increase/{Decrease) in Trade Payable 192.10 (68.67)
Increases{Decrease} in Other Liabilitles 8.15 299.33
Incrense/{Decrease} in Provisions 18.14 10.59
{Incraase)/Decrease in Trade Raceivabilas (288.57} {265.86)
{Increase)/Decrease in Short-Term Loans and Advances {0.13) {7.91)
{Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets [146.80) {439.60)
Neot cash generated from operations (676.92) (B07.45)
Direct taxes Paid 10.87 50.25
Net cash generated by operating activities {666.05) (757.20)
B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of Property, Plat and Equipments, including Intangibles {67.62) 152.22)
{Redemption) of Fixed Deposits {26.43) {13.28)
tnterest Income Racelved 52,57 30.06
Net cash used in investing activities {31.48}) {35.43)
Loan Received / (Repaid) {743.35) 111.89
Proceeds of Preference share issue 1,580.81 764,23
Interest Expense {135.82) [164.65)
Net cash {used in) 7 genarated from financing activities 701,64 711.47
Natincrease In cosh and ¢ash equivalents during the year 4.11 {81.17)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 28.82 109.99
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 32.93 28.82
Summary of Material Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an intagral part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our repost attached

For V' i Sabnis and Associates
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Vikram R Sabnis

Propriator

Membership No, 135588
UDIN;:25135589BMIEKYBE19

Date: May 23, 2025 Date: May 23, 2025
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ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
AUDITED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

{Amounts in INR Lakhs uniess gtherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital
For the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Patticulars No. ln Lacs Amount
Equity.shares of INR 10 nach issued, subscribed nnd fully paid

At Aprit 01,2023 23.08 230.77
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to priar pariod errors - -
Restated Balance as at Aprit 01, 2023 23.08 230.77
Issuo of share caphal 76.42 764.23
At March 31, 2024 99.50 995.00
For the Year Ended Masch 31, 2025

Particulars No.in Lacs Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 enach issuet, subscribed and fully.paid

At April 01, 2024 99.50 995.00
Changes In Equity Share Capiltal due to prior period arrors - -
Restated Balance asat Apl 01, 2024 99 50 995,00
Issue ol share capital {Note 12(a)) - .
AlMarch 31, 2025 99.50 895.00

B. Convertible Preference Share Capitat
For the Yeor Endad March 31, 2025
Particulars No. in Lacs Amoumt

Convertible Praforence shares.of INB 10 each tssued, subscribed and fully paid
At Apriton, 2024

Changes in Prefernce Share Capital due to prior period errors »
Restated Balance asat April Q1, 2024 E e
Issue of share capital {Note 12(b)) 14.75 147.53
At March 31, 2025 14.75 147.53

C, Other Equity
For the Year Ended March 31, 2024

Reserve and Surplus Itemas of OCI

Debt Instruments

Particulars Securities Retained |Share Based Payment] through other Totat
Premium Earnings Reserva comprehensive
Incoma
Opening Bolance as at April 01, 2023 - {1,485.20) 12.50 - (1.472.71)
Prolit for the year . (510.27) - - (510.2h
Other compsghensive Income C {8.54) - . 18.54)
Total Comprehensive Income as at March 31, 2024 - {2,004.02} 12,50 - {1,991.53)
For the Year Ended March 31, 2025
Resarve and Surplus Itams of OCI

Debt instrumaents

Particulars Securities Retalned | Share Based Poyment|  through other Total
Premium Earnings Reserve comprehensive
income

Opening Bolance as ot April 01, 2024 - {2,004.02) 12.50 . {1,991.53})
Protit for the year 1,433.28 {308B.60) - - 1,124,868
Other comprehensive Income . (1.95) . - (1.85)
Transfer 10 Retainod Eornings® . 12.50 {12.50) -
Total Comprehensive Income as et March 31, 2025 1,433.28 (2,302.08) - - {868.80)

Summary of Moterinl Actounting Policies F4
The accompanying nolas ore an integrol part of tha Financial Stalemants
in terms of cur report attached

ForV R Sabnis and Associotes
Chartered Accauntants For ond on behatt of the Board of Directors of

Firm No. 0131055W Oneworld L ti
MINA—O v V)
o "

)
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I
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Makarond Pradhan  Shrikant Nibandhe
r Director Director
DIN: 00102413 DIN: 01029115

Vikram R Sabnls

Proprietor

Membershlp No. 135589
UDIN: 251355098 MIEKYBG1S
Date; May 23, 2025

Place: Mumbal

Date: May 23, 2|
Ploce: Mumbal




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Standalone Financial Statements cormprises financial statements of One World Logistics Private
Limited (CIN: UB3090MH2010PTC198688) for the year ended 31 March 2025. The Company is a private
company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013
applicable in India. It has its Registered office at 7th Floor, T-Square, Opposite Chandivali Petrol Pump,
Saki Vihar Road, Andheri {E), Mumbai- 400072. The Company is in the business of last-mile delivery.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements:
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (the 'Ind AS'} notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') and subsequent
amendments thereof. These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention

on the accrual basis except for certain other financial assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value {refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The Company has significant accumulated losses, exceeding the paid-up share capital of the
company. But the Company is funded by holding company and the holding company has shown
intentions of continuing the funding for the operations of the Company thus the Going Concern
Assumption holds true, and the financial statements are prepared accordingly.

a) Currentversus Non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

» Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle or twelve
months after reporting period,

« held primarily for the purpose of trading or cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being
exchanged, or

« used to settle liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when itis:

+ Expected to be seitled in normat operating cycle or within twelve months after reporting period,
e itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading, or

e there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The aperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

b} Foreign Currency;

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates {‘the functional currency'). The financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupees {INR}, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency (i.e. Indian
rupee) spot rates at the date the transaction tirst qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
closing rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costina foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items are recognized
as income or expensas in the period in which they arise.

c) FairValue Measurement:
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments at fair value at each balance sheet.

Fair value is the price that would be received to seil an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction ta sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
genarate economic benefits by using the assetin its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair vaiue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level 1 —Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial
assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

d} Investments and Qther Financial Asseats

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

* those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments In debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in
which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclessifies debt
investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair vatue through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss,

Debtinstruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the group classifies its debt instruments:




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collsction of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. A gainorlossona
debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecagnized or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOC!). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized
in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized under other income, Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss {FVPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Againorlosson a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss and presented in the statement
of profit and loss under other income in the period in which it arises. Interest or dividend income, if any
from these financial assets is separately included in other income.

Impairment of Financial Assets: The Company assessesona forward-looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its assets carried at amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Equity investments {other than Investments in subsidiaries and associates):

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income when
the Company’s right to receive payments is established. Impairment losses {and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOC! are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in other
income in the statement of profit and loss.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

e) Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs.

Step 1: ldentify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more

parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must
be met

Step 2: |dentify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer services to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or ag) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Interestincome

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (“EIR"), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expecied life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, tothe
net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractuat terms of the financial instrument but
does not consider the expected credit losses.

QOtherIncome
Profit / loss on sale of investments is recognized at the time of such sale / redemption and is computed
based on weighted average cost. Income and expense on account of changes in fair value is recognize
based on the fair value of the investments as on the balance sheet date.

f) Tazes:
Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income tax Act, 1961, The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized
outside the Statement of Profit and Loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using liability approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unuse d
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probabl e
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
thatitis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and ar e
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred ta x

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply inthe year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside statement of profit and loss is recognized outside
statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI (Other Comprehensive Income) or

directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the

same taxation authority.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

g) Property, plant and equipment:

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase
price and any cost attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing
cost relating to acquisition of tangible assets which take substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to
use. Capital work in progress is stated at cost.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement
of profit and loss as incurred.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on a reducing balance basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
tollows;

Category Useful lives {in years)
Building 30to 60

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Office Equipment 5

Vehicle 6108

Cormputer 3106

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period aver which the assets are likely to be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h) Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs includes interest and amortization of ancillary cost over the period of loans which are
incurred in connection with arrangements of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing

of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.

i} Leases:

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liahility at that date at which the lease
assetis available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Company allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based
on their relative stand-alone prices.

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of the contract. Ind AS 116 defines aleaseas a
contract, or a part of a contract, that convey as the right of use an asset {the underlying asset) for a period
of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether as contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract invelves the use of an identified asset
(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
the lease and {iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less {short term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as operating expenses on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

i) Provisions;

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pretax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increasein
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

k) Contingent Liabilities:

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-gecurrence of one or more uncertain futura events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extreme rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

)  Betirementandother employee benefits:
» Short-term emplovee bensfits
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of availing employee services are
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and
ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits such as salaries and wages,
bonus and ex-gratia to be paid in exchange of employee services are recognized in the period in
which the employee renders the related service.

+ Post-employment bengfits

Defined C ibution Plans:
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The
Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund and Employees State
insurance Corporation {‘ESIC’). The contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss during the period in which employee renders the related service. There are no other
obligations other than the contribution payable to the Provident Fund and Employee State
Insurance Scheme.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity liability, wherever applicable, is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation done
as per projected unit credit method, carried out by an independent actuary at the end of the year.
The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

m) Cashandcashequivalents:

Cash comprise of cash on hand and demand deposits at the bank. Cash equivalents comprise of short

term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and demand

deposit, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

ny Cash flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {loss} before extraordinary items and
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of noncash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or
future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated in the Cash flow statement.

o} Earnings per share:

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit of the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive petential equity shares,

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for atl
periods presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.
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p} Non-current assets held for sale:

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sala should
indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will
be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of
classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale to owners are not
depreciated or amortized.

) Intongible Assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite ives are amortized cver the useful economic life and assessed forimpairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reperting period.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value
of another asset,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

1 lavestment Property:

An investment in land or building, which is not intended to be occupied substantiatly for use by, orin the
operations of the Company, is classified as investment property. Investment properties are stated at cost,
net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The costincludes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced
atintervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a straight-line basis using the
rate arrived at based on the useful life estimated by the management which is 60 years.
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Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes, Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation
performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the
International Valuation Standards Committee or on the basis of appropriate ready reckoner value based
on recent market transactions.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in
statement of profit and loss in the period of derecognition.

s) lmpairmentof non-financial assets:

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or
cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its vatue in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or Company of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or

CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the assel. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year,

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there
is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount, A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds neither its recoverable amount nor the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

t) Financialliabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability an
equity instrument.
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Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
theinstrument. Financialliabilities are initially measured st the amortized cost untess at initial recognition,
they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Financialliabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in
fair value recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

u) Bounding of amounts
Alt amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh as
per the requirement of Schedule I, unless otherwise stated

v) Reclassification
Previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary.

Signifi ing jud ; I tions:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying

amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Some of the significant accounting judgement
and estimates are given below:

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuariai valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actuat developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary
increases and mortality rates. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate
for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation, Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.
The mortality rate is based on publicly avaitable mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possibie, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in

establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The
charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of
Company assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed
periodically, including at each financial year end. The tives are based on historical experience with simitar
assets.

Effective Interest Rates

The Company's EIR methodology recognizes interest expense using a rate of return that represents the
best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life of loans taken and recognizes
the effect of potentiaily different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product
lite cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life-
cycle of the instruments, as well as expected.

Lease Terms

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if itis reasonably certain not to be exercised.
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{Amounts in INR Lakhs untess otherwise stated)

Patriculars

Furniturs and

Computer and

Office Equipment | Motor Vehicles Fixture Peripherals Total
Cost
At Aprit 01, 2023 102,34 7.9 B88.48 9.56 208.29
Additions 7.27 42,56 2.38 52.21
Disposals - - - - -
At March 21, 2024 109.61 7.91 131.04 11.85 260.51
Additiogns 10.33 17.07 17.12 3.50 48.02
Disposals - - - - -
At March 31, 2025 119.84 24.98 148.16 15.45 308.53
Accumulated Depreciation
At April @1, 2023 31.25 0.78 19.81 5.76 58.60
Depreciation charge for the year 17.86 1.98 24.20 2.92 46,96
Disposats - - - - -
At March 31, 2024 49,11 2.76 44.01 9.68 105.56
Depreciation charge for the year 17.41 6.08 25.67 2.4B 51.64
Disposals - - - . ]
At March 31, 2025 66.52 8.84 69.68 12.16 157.20
NetCarrying Valug
At March 31, 2025 53.42 16.14 78.48 .29 151.33
At March 31, 2024 60.50 5.15 87.02 2,27 154.95
Note 4: Intangible Assets
Patriculars Software
Cost
At April 01, 2023 9.34
Additions -
Additions - being internally developed
Disposals .
At March 31, 2024 2.34
Additions
Additions - being internally developed
Disposals .
At March 31, 2025 9.34
Accumulated depreciation
At April 01, 2023 1.74
Depreciation charge during the year 1.4
Disposals -
At March 31, 2024 3.15
Bepreciation charge during the year 1.24
Disposals -
At March 31, 2025 4.38
Net Carrying Value
At March 31, 2025 4,95

At March 31,2024

6.19
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{Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otharwisa statad)

Note 5: Intangible Asscts Under Development {IAUD)

Particulars

intangible Asset

under
Devalopmant

Gross Caorrying Volug.

As at April 01, 2023

Additions

Additions - being internally developed
Copitalization

As at March 31, 2024

Additons

Additigns - being internally developed
Caopitalization

5.60

As at March 31, 2025

9.60

Carrying Volue.

As at March 31, 2025

9.60

As at March 31, 2024

Ageing Ot Intangible Assets Under Davelopment
JAUD as at March 31, 2025

Amount in IAUD for a period of

Particulars More than 3

years

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yoars

Total

Projects in progress 9.60 - - -
Projects Tempararily Suspended S o

8.60

Total 9.60 - - -

9.60

Note 6: Trade Receivables

Particulors March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Trade receivabies
Receivables from an associate e
Receivables from other related parties -

1,453.60

1,165.03

Totul trade receivables 1,453.60

1,165.03

Break-up for Security Details:

{Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Trade Recejvables
A.Ungdisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good 1,453.60
B.Undisputed Trade Receivables - Which Have Significant Increase In Credit Risk -
C. Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impact 5
D. Disputed Trade Receivoble - Considered Good -
E.Disputed Trade Receivabiles - Which Have Significant Increase In Credit Risk -
F. Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impact -

1,165.03

Total 1,453.60

1,165.03

Impairment Allowance {atlowance for bad and doubtful debts)
A.Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good .
B.Undisputed Trade Receivables - Which Have Significant Increase In Credit Risk -
C. Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit impact -
D. Disputed Trade Reccivable - Considered Good -
E.Disputed Trade Receivables - Which Have Significant Increase In Credit Risk -
F. Disputed Trade Receivables - Cradit Impact -

Total
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{Amounts in INR Lakhs unless othenwvise sttled)

Yeor ondod March 31, 2025

b.Undisputed Trade Receivubles - which have signilicont incrense in Credit Risk
< Undisputed Trode Recelvablas - Credit Impact

d. Disputed Trado Hoceivable - Considarod good

«.Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in Credit Risk

I, Disputed Trode Reccivables - Credil impaet

|Particulara Not Dus TUALEDLY (CaCTALER 1.2 yanrs 2-3yonrs LTI Total
maonths 1year yedry
a.Undisputed Trode Recelvables - considered good 117815 251.18 1.02 19.54 in - 1,451 60
b Undisputod Trade Receivables - which hava signilicant increase in Credit Rlsk . - - . . . .
€ Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit impoct - . . - - . .
d. Disputed Trade Receivatble - Considered goad - A 5 a & :: .
e.Disputed Trado Racoivablas - which have significant Incroase in Cradit Risk - - . . . - .
I Disputed Trado Receivakles - Credit impact - - - - - = -
Yeor ended March 31, 2024
t| -
Partlculors Not Due ORI GG 1-2 yenrs 2= ycors L TOULEL Total
months 1yoar yoors
0.Undispuied Trode Receivables - considered goad 1.068.36 21.25 70.48 4,94 1.105.62

Note 7: Cosh and Cosh Equivalonts

Particulors

March 31, 2025

Maorch 31, 2024

Balancos with banks ; In surer aoccowits

32,88 I8.54
Cash onhand 0.06 o427
Total 12.94 28.82
Note B: Bank balances other than cosh and cosh equivnients
Partlculors Mareh 31, 2025 | Morch 31, 2024
Fixed dueposits
« wilh original motuslty fof mode thon 3 months but tesa thon 12 months 280.39 253.96
Total 280.29 253.96
Note Bla): Loans
Particutars Maorch 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Curtent Laans
Loons to reluted partles
Unsegured. congidered good
Advunce to Direclors! CEO tor Expenses {(Improst) - 0.75
Loons ta Others
Unsuecureg, considered good 1287 11.98
Totol 12.87 12,74
Note ${b): Other Finonclal Aasats
Particulars March 31, 2025 | Mareh 31, 2024
Currant
Unsecurud, considered good
Security Deposit 164.69 1287
Totol 164.69 128.17
Nota 10: Other Azsels
Particutars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Current
Frepald Expenses E9.:0 63154
Advance to Vendors 491.558 J86.68
Other Cunent Assels = =
Total 560.7% 450.52
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fAmounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise siated)
HNote 11: Income Toxes

Note 11(a): Income Tox expense

Profit and Loss Section

Particulors March 31, 2025 § March 31, 2024

Current Tax

Current tax expense - -

MAT Credit Written Off - -

Taxabla in ditterant heads of Income =

Shart provision of Previous Years

Curront Tax Expense - -

Delerred Tax

Relating 1o Origination and Reversal of Temporory Ditierences 287.34 8.03

Total Deferred Tox Expense/{Benetit) 287.34 8.03

Total Income Tax Expenscs reported in thhe statement of Profit and Loss 287.34 8.03

Other Comprehensive Incoma Section

Deferred Tax Relating ta the Items Recognized in QCI during the yeor

Doferrod Income Tox March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Net {loss)/Gain on remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan {0.69) (2.87)

Tatal Deferred Income Tax {Expenses)/incoma charged to OCI {0.65) {2.87)

Note 11{b}: Reconclliation of tax expense and the sccounting profit muttiplied by India's tax rate:

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 21, 2024

Protit before income tox expense (595.54) (518.29)

Enacted Tax ratg (%) 26.000% 25.168%

Tax at India’s statutory income tax rate of 26% (31st March 2024: 25.168%) - -

Tax elfect of amounts which are not deductible (toxable) in calculating taxable income - -

Tax ettect of amounts which are deductible in calculating taxable income . -

Taxable in ditterent heads ol Income - -

Short provision of Previous Years . -

Dofarred Tax Expense 288.03 10.80

MAT Credit Written off - -

Income Tax Expense 288.07 10.80

Note 11{¢): Deferred Taxes

Balonce Sheet

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Deferred tox Relotes to the following:

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles - Impact of ditference in Tax Depreclation and Depreciation Charged to

Protit and Loss Statement 15.75 13.25

Employee Benelits 15,72 9.99

Accumulated Losses and Unabsorbed Depreciation 279.80 -
Total 311,27 23.24

Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Doterred tax Relates to tho {olowing:

Praperty, Plant and Equipment and intangibics - Impact of dillarence in Tax Depreciation and Depreciation Charged to

Profit and Loss Statement 2.50 5.51

Emptoyee Benetils 5.04 2.9

Accumuiaied Losses and Unabsorbed Depreciation 279.80 .
Total 287.34 8.03

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Opening Balance 23.24 12,34

Tax Incomef{expense} chorged to Prolit and Loss 287.34 8.03

Tax Incomet{enpense} charged Lo OCI 0.69 2.87
Totol 311.27 23.24
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{Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise statad}

Note 12: Equity
Note 2{o}: Equity Share Capital

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Authorised capijtal
1,00,00,000 Equity Shares of € 10 each
{March 31, 2024 : 1,00,00,000 shares of Rs.10 Each)

Issued, subscribed and paid.up
99,50,000 Equity Share o1 ¥ 10 each
{March 31, 2024: 99,50,000 Equity Shares)

1,000 00

995.00

1,000.00

995.00

Note 12{b}: Convertible Preference Share Capital

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Authorised capital
15,00,000 Convertible Preference Shares of £ 10 each
{March 31, 2025 : 15,00,000 shoares of Rs.10 Each)

Issugd, subscribed and poid.ug.
14,75,327 Preference Shore of € 10 each

[March 31, 2025: 14,75,327 Preference Shares)

150

147,53

i. Reconciliation of number of the equity shares outstanding at the beg

Jinning and ot the end of the year

As at March 31 2025

As al March 31 2024

Particulars No. of Shares No. of Shares

(in Lakhs) Amount {in Lakhs} Amount
Equity Shates
At the beginning ol the year 89.50 995.00 23.08 230.77
{+) Issued during the year - - 76.42 764.23
{-) Forleited during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 99.50 995.00 99.50 995.00
Preferonce Shares
At the beginning of the year - - - -
{+} Issued during the year 14.75 147.53 - -
{-) Forfeited during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 14.75 147.53 - -

The Company has only ene class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of

the shareholders in the ensuing Annuat General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, atter
distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

il. Details of shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares of the company

Nome of Shareholder

As at March 31 2025

As at March 31 2024

No. of Shares
{in Lakhs)

%hotding

No. of Shares
{in Lakhs)

%holding

Total Transport Systems Limited

99.50

100.00

98.50

100.00
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{Amounts in INR Lakhs unlass otherwise stated)

ill. Promoter Holding

As at March 31 2025 As at March 31 2024

Name of Promoter N‘()I'nolt::‘:s';s %holding %change Nc(rl.nu:::hu:s %holding %change
Total Transport Systems Limited 99.50 100.00 - 99.50 100.00 -
Shrikant Nibandhe - - - - - -
Makarand Pradhan - - 5 5 B 8
Sanjiv Potnis - S S 5 - -

Tatal 99,50 100.00 - 89.50 100.00 -
Note 12{c): Other Equity
Reserve and Surplus
Particulars Securlties Retained Share Based Total
Premium Payment
Earnings
Reserve Reservg

Balance as at April 01, 2023 - (1,485.20) 12.50 {1,472.71)
Prolit for the year - {510.27) - {510.27)
QOther comprehensive Income (8.54) - {8.54)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - {2,004.02) 12.50 {1,991.53)
Balance as at Aprit 01, 2024 - (2,004.02} 12.50 {1,991.53)
Profit for the year . (308.60) - (305.60}
Securities Issued During the year 1,433.28 - - 1,433.28
Other comprehensive Income - (1.95} - {1.95)
Transfer 1o Retained Earnings* 12.50 (12.50) -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 1,433.28 {2,302.08) - {868.80)

Note

* The company has cancelled its ESOP Scheme resulting in transter of Share Based Payment raserve to Retained Earnings.

Nature.and Purpese of Beserves

1 Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for timited purposes such as issuance of

bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2 Retained Earnings

Retained carnings are the profits/{loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general resarve, dividends or ather
distributions paid 10 shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / {gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be
reciassified 1o Statement of Profit and Loss.




ONEWORLD LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

{Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 13: Borrowings
Note 13(a);: Non-Current Borrowings

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

A. Secured Borrowings
- from Banks
- from Related Parties

- from Others 3.79 2.06

B. Unseccured Borrowings

- from Banks - 2.08

- from Related Parties - -

- from Others 5 5
Total 3.79 4.14

Note 13(b): Current Borrowings

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

A. Secured Borrowings
- from Banks*

691.28 540.66
- from Related Parties - -
- from Others - -
B. Unsecured Borrowings
- from Banks - -
- from Related Parties 695.15 1,590.40
- from Others - -
C. Current Maturities of long-term borrowing 7.05 5.42
Total 1,393.48 2,136.48

Notes:

Borrowing fram bank is an overdraft facility and working capital term loan with a drawing limit of Rs.500 lakhs and Rs.200

lakhs respectively. The overdraft carry an interest rate of I-MCLR# and a spread of 3.50%

Secured borrowing from bank is a vehicle loan of Rs.10,66,908.67 with a current maturity of Rs.§,87,552. The average

effective interest rate is 19.8051% p.a.

Note 14: Provisions
Note 14{a): Non-Current Provisions

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Provisicn for Gratuity 57.63 38.37
Total 57.63 38.37

Note 14(b): Current Provisions

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Provision for Gratuity 2.84 1.32
Total 2.84 1.32
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{Amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 15: Trade Payables

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
MSME 20.81 21.98
Others 997.68 804.41
Total 1,018.49 826.39
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
Year Ended March 31, 2025
M th
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years orethan 3 Total
years
MSME 20.81 - . - 20.81
Others 978.03 19.65 - - 997.68
Disputed dues {(MSME) - - - - -
Disputed dues { Others ) - - - -
Year Ended 31st Morch 2024
. More than3
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
years
MSME 21.98 - - - 21.98
Others 804.41 - - - 804.41
Disputed dues {(MSME) - - - - -
Disputed dues { Others ) - - - - -
Note 16: Other Financial Liabilities
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Current
Audit Fees Payable 3.38 3.38
Other Liabilities 48.98 4.80
Total 52.36 8.18
Note 17: Other Liabilities
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Current
Statutory Payables 304.43 79.17
Other Liahiiities 35.65 1.67
Contract Liabilities 295.27
Total 340.08 376.11
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Note 18; Revenue from Operations

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Sale of Services 10,267.36 8,972.680

Sale of Goods* 96.44 -
Total 10,363.80 8,972.60

*Note: During the year company has sold goods of ¥ 96.441 lakhs, Generally the company does not operate in trading of

goods thus there is no comparitive revenue to be reported for ther same.

Note 19;: Other Income

Particulors March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Interest on Fixed Deposit 16.18 16.37
Interest on Income Tax Refund 8.09 13.69
Cther Income 41.17 17.75
Interest Income 28.30 -
Total 93.74 47.82
Note 20: Direct Operating Expenses
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Handling Charges 9,160.30 8,029.4%
Consumption of Stock in Trade 94.42 -
Total 9,254,72 8,029.41
Note 21: Employee benelit expenses
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 514.52 393.01
Contribution to statutory funds 19.01 15.16
Staif weliare expenses 151.67 117.39
Tatal 685.20 525.56

Note 22: Finance Cost

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Interest on Loan - Bank and other financial institutions 64.67 15.88
Interest on Loan - Related Party 48.40 147.45
Interest - Statutory Dues 17.88 0.01
Interest Expense - Others 4.87 1.3

Total 135.82 164.65

Note 23: Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipemts 51.64 46.96
Amortization of Intangible Assets 1.24 1.41
Total 52.88 48.37
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Note 24: Other expenses

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Advertising and Publicity

1.16 0.94
Business Promotion B.56 18.08
Communication Expense 23.41 24.68
Conveyance & Travelling Expense 78.34 66.79
Electricity expense 75.41 61.46
Postage expense 9.04 2.51
Printing and stationery 13.44 17.09
Rent, rates and taxes 268.80 225.86
Repairs and Maintenance charges 104.64 65.32
Professional Fees 18.84 21.74
Subscription and Membership 9.11 27.23
Other expenses 310.26 234.99
Total 921.11 766.68
Payment to Auditor
As auditors:
Audit fees 2.50 2.80
Tax audit fees 1.25 1.25
3.75 4.05
Total 924.86 770.73
Profit before tax {595.94) {518.28)
Current Tax - -
Deterred Tax {287.34) (8.03}
Profit ofter tax {308.60) (510.27)

Note 25: Earnings per share

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used In calculating basic
earnings per share and diluted earnings per share

Profit for the period

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calcutating
basic and diluted earnings per share

Naminat value of shares

Earnings per equity share (basic and diluted)

Employee Stock Option Planthat could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in
the future, but were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share
because they are antidhlutive for the period presented.

(308.60)
99.50

10.00
(3.10)

(510.27)
46.25

10.00
(11.03)
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Note 26: Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulors

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

1)The principal amgunt and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid o any supplier as at the
end of each accounting year

a) Principal amount due 1o micro and small enterprises

b) Interest due on above

11} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along

with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounlting year

H1} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

V) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specitied under the MSMED Act 2006.

V} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the intgrest dues as above are actualiy paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

20.81

21.98

Note 27: Details of Revenue from Contract with Customears
a. Principal revenue Generation Activity

Onevvorld Logistics Private Limited is generating revenue majorly through last mile delivery services on all India level
and delivery of shipments from base hub till customer doorstep and invoicing generated on monthly basis.

b. Disaggregation Revenue Information
The Company’s disaggregoted revenue by Geographical Location

Mtincludes pickup

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Last-Mile Delivery Operalions 10,267.36 8,972.60

Sale of Goods 96.44 -
Total Revenue from contracts with customers 10,363.80 8,972.60

Location wise:

India 10,363.80 8,972.60

Qutside India - -
Totat Revenue from contracts with customers 10,363.80 8,8972.60

c. Contract Balances

The timing of revenue recognition,billings and cash collection resuits in trade receivables, and billings in excess of costs and estimated
earnings on uncompleted contracts {Contract Liabilities) on the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025.
The Company discloses receivables from contracts with customers separately in the balance sheet. To comply with the other

disclasure requirements for contract assets and liabitities following information is disclosed.

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Mgere than one year

Trade Receivabies 1,453.60 1,165.03
Contraoct Linbilities - 285.27
d. Reconciliation with amount recognized in Statemont of Profit and Loss with Contracted Price
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Revenue ot conlrated Price 10,363.80 8,972.60
Total Revenue from contracts with customers 10,363.80 8,972.60
e. The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at March 31,
Particulass March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Within ona year - 295.27

Total

295.27
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Note 28: Net employee defined benefit liabilities

ti. Defined Contributions Plans

For the company an amount is contributed to provident funds, ESIC and other funds is recognised by as an expense and inciuded in
“Contibution 10 Provident & Other Funds” under "Employee benefits expense” in the Statemant of Profit and Loss,

ts. Deflned Benefits Plans

As per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or
more of service gets a gratuity on resignation or retirament at 15 days salary {last drawn salary) for saach completed year of servica.
The following table’s summaries the components of net benefit axpensa recognised in the Statemant of Profit and Loss and the funded status

and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans of the company.

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

l. Statemant of profit and loss - Net employee benefit expense recognisad in employee cast
Current service cost

15.28 9.28
Interost cost on defined henefit obligation 2.86 1.3
Net benelits expenses rocognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 18.14 10,59
1l. Balance Sheet - Details of provision and fair value of plan assets
Benelit gbligation 50.47 {39.69)
Net Liobility recognised in the Balance Sheet 60.47 {39.69)
{ll. Change in the present value of the defined benelft obligation arc as tollows:
Opening detined benelits otiligations 38.70 17.69
Interest cost 2.86 1.3
Current sgrvice cost 15.28 9.28
Benelits paid - B
ocCi - -
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 3.17 14.33
Actuaral changes arising from changes in experience assumptions {0.54}) {2.91)
Liability ot the end of the year 60.47 39.69
iV. Total Cost recognised in Comprehensive Income
Costrecognised in P&L 18.14 10.59
Remeasurement etfects recognised in OCI 2.63 13.41
Costrecognised in Comprehensive Income 20.77 22.00
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Year 1 2.84 1.32
Yeor 2 3.00 1.73
Year 3 2.76 2.88
Yearq 3.09 2.28
Year 5 3.79 2.585
Year61o010 26.31 18.55
Sum of years 11 and above 109.67 76.02
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The principal assumptions usad in determining gratuity obligations for the plans of the Company are as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.71% 7.21%
Salary escalation 15.00% 15.00%
Employee Turnover rate 10.00% 10.00%

Mortality Rate during Employment

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14
(Urban)

Indian Assured Lives
Mortaility {2012-14)

A guantitotive sensitivity nnalysis for the significant assumptions as at march 31, 2025

Defined benefit obligation

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Delta ctfect of +1% change in the rate of discounting (6.09) {3.92}
Delta elfect of -1% change in the rate of discounting 7.25 4,65
Delta elfect of +1% change in the rate of salary increase 5.25 3.38
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of salary increase (4.87) (3.22}
Delia elfect of +1% change in employee turnover rate {3.15) {2.02)
Delta elfect of -1% change in employee turnovar rate 3.58 2.31
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Note 29: Related Party Disclosures

The Disclosure portaining to the related parties as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 Issued by Ministry of Corporate
Attairs (MCA), as applicable, are indicated below:

a. i. Related parties where control exists:

Helding Company

Total Transport System Limited

ii. Other related parties:
Associates apd Jgint Ventures N/A

iii. Entities over which key managerial personnel or their relatives exercise significant Influence:
Commen Director

lag Software Solution Private Limited

WSA SHPG Bombay Private Limited

CLA Express Private Limited

RN Freight Forwarders Private Limited

Seeder {India) E-commerce Private Limited

iv. Key manageriol personnel;

Name Designation

Mr Prashant Rane CEC

Mr. Shrikant Nibandhe Director

Mr Sanjiv Potnis Director

Mr Makarand Pradhan Director

Mr Shyam Dakshini Company secretary

v. Relatives of KMP (Prashant Rane)

Name Designation

Mrs. Vijaya Vishwanath Rane Relative of Key Manageral personal
Mr. Kiran Vishwanath Rane Relative of Key Manageral personal
Mr. Vivaan Prashant Rane Relative ot Key Manageral personal
Ms. Samairaa Prashant Rane Relative of Key Manageral personal
Mr. Jay Nibandhe Relative of Key Manageral personal
Ms. Gauri Nibandhe Relative of Key Manageral personal
Mrs. Sneha Nibandhe Relative of Key Manageral personal
Mr. Damedar Nibandhe Reiative of Key Manageral personal
Mrs. Meena Nibandhe Reiative of Key Manageral personal
Mrs. Prerana Jay Mibandhe Retative of Key Manageral personal
Mrs. Vrinda Pradhan Relative of Key Manageral persanal
Mr. Abhijeet Pradhan Retative of Key Manageral personal
Mr. Aditya Pradhan Retative of Key Managerol personal
Mrs. Mrunalini Pradhan Relative of Key Manageral personat
Mrs. Mrinaiini Pradhan Ralative of Key Manageral personal
Mr. Siddharth Potnis Retative of Key Manageral personal
Ms. Sanjana Potnis Relative of Key Manageral personal
Mrs., Sirnran Potnis Reiative of Key Manageral personal
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Note 29: Related Party Disclosures

b. i, Summary of transactions with related parties:

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Other Related Party Remuneration
Key Managerial Persons

Interest Expense
Total Transport Systemns Limited

Support Charges (Expenses)
Total Transport Systems Limited

42.99

48.40

185.31

31.94

147.45

226.64

b.1i, Balanco Outstanding at the End of the Year

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Loan From
Total Transport Systems Limited
Shrikant Damodar Nibandhe

Creditors.
Total Transport Systems Limited

Non CurrentAssets
Financiat Assets
Advances.

Prashant Rane

£645.56
49.58

64.01

1580.81
9.58

56.32

0.75
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Nota 30: Fair Value hlerarchy
The fair value of the financial assets and Liabilities is Included a1 the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction batween willing
partios, other than in a forcod or liquidation sola.

The Company has established the loltowing fair value hierarchy that categosises the values inte 3 lavels. The inputs to valuation techniques used to measure foir value
of linancial instruments are:

Lavel 1: This higrarchy uses quoted {unadjusted) prices In active markots for identicsl assets or Liabilities,

Level 2: The fair value ot linancial instrumants that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuatlon technigues which maximize the use of observable
market data and rely ns little as possible on Company specilic estimates.

Laval 3: I ana or more of the signiticant inputs ks not based on observable market dota, the instrumant (s Includad in Level 3.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair voiues:

1. The Campany has not disclosed the foir values of financlal Instruments such as cash and ¢osh equivalants, bank balances, other than cash and cash equivalonts,
trade receivalies, other Linancial assets (except dorivatives), trade peyablas and ether finonclat liabilities {except derivotives) becouse their carrying amounts are @
1easonable appreximation of 1ait value. Further, for financial assets, the Company has taken Into censideration the allowancoes for expectod crodit losses and odjusted
the carrying values where applicoble.

2. The tair vatues for loans given ore catcutated bosed on discounted cash llows using current lending rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty, Based
on this evaluation, allowances are taken 1o account or expacted losses of these receivables. Accordingly, tair value ol such instruments are not materially dillerent
from their carrying values,

3. Falr values ol tha Company's interest-baaring borrowings ara determined by using discounted cash flow method using the current borrowing rates. Fair valua of such
instruments are not materially diferent from thair carrying values. The awn non-performance risk as at March 31, 2025 was nssessed to be Insignificant.

Tha carrying value and fait value of financial instruments by categories ineluding the quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy as st March 31, 2025
is ps follows;

Quotod Pricoin | Significant Significont
Particulars Carrying Value Notas active market observable uncbservable
{Lovel 1) inputs {Lovel 2) | Inputs {Lovel 3)
EinancinlAssuts
Amortised Cost
Trade receivables 1,453.860 6 - - -
Loans 12,87 9la) - - -
Other Financial Asscts 164.69 b} - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 32.94 7 - - -
Bank balance other than Cash ond Cash Equivalents 280.39 8 - - -
FinancialLiabilities
Amortised Cost
Borrowings 1,397.27 [13(a} &13b) - - -
Trade Payables 1,018.49 15 - - -
Other Finunciol Liabilitios 52.36 16 - - -

Tha canying valua and fair value of financial Instruments by categories including the quanutative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy as at March 31, 2024
is pg follows:

Quoted Price in Signiticont Significont
Particulars Carrying Value Notos active market obsorvable unchservable
{Lavel 1) inputs {Levol 2) | Inputs {Level 3)
Einuncinl Assets
Amortised Cost
Trade recuivobles 1,165.03 6 - . -
Lonns 12.74 S{a) - - -
Other Financial Assots 128.17 ) - - .
Cash and Cash Equivalents 28.82 7 - . -
Bank balonce other than Coash and Cash Equivalents 253.96 a8 - - -
Financial Liabilitics
Amorilsed Cost
Borrowings 2,140.62 | 13(a) £13(b) - - .
Trado Payables B826.39 15 - - -
Other Financial Liabilitiea 8.18 16 - - -

Tho management ossessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade teceivables, trade payable, short term borrowings, bonk overdrafls and other current diabititios
approximate tier camying amaounts largely due to the short term maturities of these Instyyuments ond are thus measured at amortized cost.
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HNota 31: Corporale social responsibitiy

Thes companiss menlicned under Sachon 135 of the Companies Aci, 2013 ara required 1o comply with CSA provisiona. It 2imas 10 prormots responslble
business praclices nnd contributa towards tha woltara of socinty. Tha crtorin for CSR nppticebilly are basad on tha company's nat worth, Wusbovar,
and profit.
As par Socilon 135 of tha Companian Act 2013, every Company meoling the betow criterla must constituto 8 C5H committes and undsiaka CSR
activitigs The ¢ritetlu are a8 Ialtows:

o Companies whn b net worth of Rs. 500 crore of mora, or

b. Companws with @ turnover of Rs, 1,000 crore of more, of

¢, Companigy with s nat profi of Rs, 5 crore or more

Such companies are mondated 10 spend ot laosi 2% of theit varage nel prolils mode durning the preceding three 1:nanciol yeors on CSR activitien
Sinca, the compony does aal sataly ony of the above mentioned condilicns, C5H i not applicable to Lha company.

Hata 12: Segmont Roporting
The Compony has idgntlied “Last Mito Dalvery”, a9 113 enly seportable segment as dahined undar Ind AS 108 - Dpurating Segmants
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HNoto 33; Analylicol Rolios

Ratio HNumeralar, Dengminatar March 11, 2025 Morch 31, 2024 *Changs Raanon for varlonce
Tha toasen lof ngropse n
Totol Cuwrrent Tetal Currant i i
. 2T 089 061 &6.54 relio is majorly bacouse of in|
nasets Labiltics iha current yoor as comporad
19 provious yaor.
The reason lor incresse in
| . .
?olnl Lrablhlln Shareholdar's ratio Is majorly becouss ol
Dwebt « Equity Rutio | {including laass equity 5.13 {2.15) {338.23} Iszue of shores in promivm
linbiliLina) whi¢h docigoss tha loss o3
T gy i,
Earung avaltoble Detit Service The roason lor Inciease In
. fcr debt [interest rotio ts mojorly becouse of
WD sorvice {Hel proht and principle increaso in loss in the cutient|
Coveroge Rola o G . (2.00} {1.85) 61N
{in timos) ulzer poyments year &3 comnoied 1o pravious|
Langs ¢ Including tease yOBL.
vepiyciation) y i3]
1
Frolit tor th yaur the reoson T’ lblIClOIISI u;
R lass Average ratio 12 l-nn,l::y CCUI0 O
o b pralgtence Shaieholder's 85 19% 45 59% 87.20 Incue:u " .nndhuacman
dividond, if equity In other oquity in tho eurrant
yoer as comparet 19 povious
wny
!ﬂl’lf.
The tenson for dectaase In
tatio |4 mujoily becouss of
Trpdorecowattos | Revenua frem Averogo trade
u g 792 8.69 (8.95) increase In ttode 1e¢evaoles
turnover ratio opurations recevnbles in  the curent  year  ug
compared 10 provicus year.
Tho resson for incronsa in
& o i 1 A ratio i3 mojoty becouse of
tada payabloy multl-moga verngo trada 10.03 533 7.56 incroase in exponses in the
turnoves 1atio axponses payatiles current yust 08 compsred 10
pravicus yoar.
_ Avetage working The reason lor incioase in|
Het ¢apita) cepital ratio Is majorly becouss o
turnovar favonua trom i it
{i.a. curtent nssts (12.86) {6.15) 109.28 e R LCTIE LI
rolie oparations r e in the current yesr s
{in imas) custrant llabiities) compared 10 pravious year
The ssuson lor tectynse in
e 19 mojorly  because
Revenue  has  Incrwused
Mot ptolt alter Revanua from
Hol profit Rato 2.90)% 5.69 47, !
roh (%) . cperatlons {2.98) 15.69)% {47.64) substantially and loss sl
duciwased i The cuztent yesr
a3 &Lomparpl 1o previgus
¥l
Capual amployey The reakzis lor deClonsg )
= Nt ratig is mnggrly hocouse debl
[T —— Eatnings betors woith + lense ncsonsad aubstaniuly in thy
enployed (%) tox and Labilities + A2 55% {36.32)% {1038) cuisons yoor o3 compared 10!
{inpnce cost cdelarred nr pravious yoar,
liobilities+ total
dpbt
The reuson for decrease in
i 13 majorly  bDecauss,
vedimenis ;m FDRs npg
Average invesied
Incoma ) ncreased ond the increass in
Rvluinon tungs in -«
fonerated hpm 303% 313% (8.52) inlgrust Income 13
Investment {H) N trvasury q
invasled lunda . feemparatvgly  dosa than
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Note 34: Financial Risk Management Objectives & Policics:-
The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprises of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to linance the Company's operations and 1o provide guarantecs to SUppart its operations.

The Company's principat financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations. The Company also holds investments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below,

The Company's size and operations result in it being exposed 1o the fellowing market risks that orise from its use of financiol instrurnents:

a. interest rate risk

b, currency nsk

c. pricerisk

The above risks may alfect the Company's income or the value of its financial instruments. The abjective of the Company's management of market
risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns. The Company's exposure to, and management of, these risks is
explained helow.

. Jmerest Risk

Inerast rate risk is the risk that the tair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 1luctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company's exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily 1o the Company's long term debt obligations with lioating
interest rates

Interest Rate Sensitivity

For the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, every 1% depreciation / appreciation in the interest rata for floating borrowings, would have
affected the Company's incremental operating margins approximately as stated below

Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31,2024
Current Finance Cost 45,40 16.86
Dolta cHoctof + 1% change in the rate of interest 50.18 18.87
Delta effect of - 1% change in the rate of interest 40.62 14.86

b. Foreigncucaency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates retates primarily to the Company's operating activities {when revenue or
expense is denominated in o foreign currency).

The company has no Revenue and Caost that is incurred in foreign currencies, Thus company is not exposed to any risk on account of loreign
exchange fiuctuations

c. Equity Price Risk

The company has notinvested in any quoled and unquoted equity securities. Thus the company is not exposed to any risk on account of equity price
fluctuations.

d. Management ol Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions and other financial instruments.

Trade raceivable

Customer credn risk 's managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed and indimidual credit imits are defined in accordance with this assessment.

Qutstanding custamer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company has diversitied customer base consideringthe nature and type of business,
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables

are greuped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment coltectivety, The calcuiation is based on historical data, The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying vaiue of each class of financial assets disciosed in Asset. The Company does not hold collateral as
security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trode receivables as low, as its customers are located in several
jurisdictions and industrics and operate in largely independent markets.
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Other Financial Assets
The Company maintains expasure in Cash and Cash equivalotns, term depasits with banks / financial institutions and invastments in marketabla
debt invesiments including the government securities. The Company has diversified partfalio of investment with various number of counter parties

which have secure credit ratings hence the risk is tow. The Company's maximum exposure to Credit risk as at March 31, 2025 and 2024 is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets as disclosed.

a.Llquidity Risk

The Company's objective is to maintgin a balance between continuity of funding and tlexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, and bank loans.
95% of the Company's borrowing will mature in less than one year at 21 March 2025 (31 March 2024: 99%) based on the carrying value of borrowings
reflected in the financial stotements. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect 1o refinancing its debt and concluded it 1o be low.
The Company has the ability to roltover debt maturing within 12 months with existing lenders,

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial \iabilities as at 31 March 2024.

Year Endad - 31 March 2024 On Damand Less than 1 Year {More than 1 year

Borrowings 5466 1,595.82 4,14

Trade Payables - 204,41 -
Total 540.66 2,400.23 4.14

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financia

| liabilities as a1 31 March 2025

Yoear Endad - 31 March 2025

On Demand

Less than 1 Year

Mora than 1 year

Borrowings

- 1,393.48 3.79
Trade Payabies - 997.68 -
Total - 2,391.16 3.79

f. Capitol Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves

attributable 10 the equity holders of the Company, The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder
value.

The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns 1o
ourshareholgers. The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to
meet its strategic and Uoy-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain of adjust the capitai structure, the Company may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders of issue new shares.

The Company’s pelicy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investar, creditors and market
conlidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if
necessary adjust, its capital structure,

Inorder to achicve this overall objeclive, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
atuched to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the tinancial covenants would

permit the bank to snimediately call ilnans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.,
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Note 35: Other Statutery information

a}

b)

e}

d)

8l

h}

k}

m

n)

Dotnils of Benam| Property hald
No proceedings hove been initiated on or aro pending against the company a1 hoiding benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition} Act, 1988 {45 of
1988} ond Rules made thersunder

Borrowing sacured ngalnst current ossets

Tho carmpany has borrowing irom banks on the bosis ¢f Book Dobis. The Company has camplied with the resuirement of liling of guoiledsly returns/ statlamemta with the
banks, as npplicable, and 1haso raturns wera in agreemer it with the books of accounts.

Wiltul Deiouiter
Tha Company 105 not been declared witful detbultar by any bank or financiol Institutions or governmeni &r any gavernment authority.

Rolattonship with struck o Companies
Tha Company hos no trensactions with the compaonises struck oif under the Compon es Act, 2013,

Complisnca with nuinber of layer ot Companies
The Campany nas complled with the nurmber of leyers prescribed undar the Companies Act, 2013

Campllanco with appioved scheme(s) of arrongaments
Tho Company hos net entaied into ony scheme of arrangement which hoas an accounting impact on current of previous tinanclal yaar,

Utllisation of Borrowed funds and Share premium
No lunds have been ndvanced or loaned or invested {either frem borrowed funds or share premium or any other sourcos or kind of funds by tha Company to of in any

olher parsan or antity, including foreign entities {"Intermediories”) with the understanding, whather racorded in writing or gtherwisa, that tha Intermediary shatt lend ar
nvest ¢ party idenhified by or on bahall of the Company (Ultimote Beneficiares). The Company has not received any fund fram any pary {Funding Party) with the
U"Uﬁf!lalldl;'lg thot the Company shall whether, ciractly or Indirectly tend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Banulic anes") or provide ooy gusranteg, sceunty or tha like on behatt of tho Ultimatoe Bonoliciarioes.

Undisciosed Income
There is no incwims surrendured or disclused os inceme during the current or previous yeor in 1he tox assessmetts undor the Income Tax Ast, 1961, that has nat baun
recorded in thu books of necount.

Duetoils of Crypto currency of virtual currency
The Company has not traded or Invested in crypto currancy of virtual currency during the current or previous year,

Valuatlon of PP&E, Intnngible asset and Investmaeant property
The Cosnpany haa not revalued its property, ptant and squipmant {including right-of-usa nssets) or Intangitle assots during the curront or previous yaar.

Tille deuds of Immovable properties not held in nome of the company
The titlu deods ol 8l the immevable proparties ara keld in the name ol the Company

Raegistration of chargos or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There ore no charges or satisfoction which ara yot to ba registored with the Registrar of Comparias beyond the statutory period.

Coru Invesiment Company (CIC)
Thero 810 ne CIC in tha grougk.

Audit Trall

The Company hos usod on accounting software tor maintpining its books ot account which hos o feature of recording audit tra | {adit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout tha yoar for nll relovant transnctions recosded in the sultware. Furthor, No instanco of audit trail foaturo being tampared with wero found.
Additionally, the pudit troil has been preserved by the company a4 per the statutory requiremants for record retenticn

Nate 36: Provious period tigurys

Fievious pesiod guros have boen regrouped, 2s considorud RECOSSNsy O confrnm wilh thix current pariod prosgeniation

For V R Sabnis and Associalos

Chartared Accountants
Firm No. 0131055wW

Vikram R Sabais
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